
 

CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA 

Honorable Mayor Jason Lary, Sr. 
Council Member Jimmy Clanton, Jr. – District 1 Council Member Rob Turner- District 2 

Council Member Jazzmin Cobble – District 3 Council Member George Turner- District 4 

Council Member Diane Adoma – District 5 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
July 8, 2019 

7:00 p.m. 
3120 Stonecrest Blvd. Suite 190 

Stonecrest, Georgia 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Jason Lary 
 

II. ROLL CALL:  Megan Reid, City Clerk 
 

III. INVOCATION 
 

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

V. AWARDS AND HONORS 
 

VI. APPROVAL OF THE COUNCIL AGENDA 
 

 
 

VII. MINUTES: 
1. Approval of the June 10, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 

 
VIII. PRESENTATIONS:  

 
IX. PUBLIC COMMENTS 



 
X. APPOINTMENTS: 

 
XI. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
 
 

XII. OLD BUSINESS: 
1. Comprehensive Plan 2038- Resolution  

 
XIII. NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Hotel Motel Tax Ordinance 1st Reading 
2. Zoning Ordinance Services- The Collaborative Firm 

 
 

XIV. EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

WHEN AN EXECUTIVE SESSION IS REQUIRED, ONE WILL BE CALLED FOR THE FOLLOWING ISSUES:  1) PERSONNEL, 
2) LITIGATION, 3) REAL ESTATE 

 
XV. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS 

 
XVI. CITY ATTORNEY COMMENTS 
XVII. MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
XVIII. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
 

SUBJECT: Council Meeting Minutes from June 10, 2019 
 

( ) ORDINANCE ( ) POLICY ( ) STATUS REPORT 

( ) DISCUSSION ONLY ( ) RESOLUTION ( x ) OTHER 

Council Meeting: 7/08/2019 
 
 

SUBMITTED BY: MEGAN REID 
 

PURPOSE: 
 
 

HISTORY: 
 

FACTS AND ISSUES: 
 
 

OPTIONS: 
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: APPROVAL BY MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
 

             

 

CITY OF STONECREST, GEORGIA 



Honorable Mayor Jason Lary, Sr. 
Council Member Jimmy Clanton, Jr. – District 1 Council Member Rob Turner- District 2 

Council Member Jazzmin Cobble – District 3 Council Member George Turner- District 4 

Council Member Diane Adoma – District 5 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
June 10, 2019 

 7:00 p.m. 
3120 Stonecrest Blvd. Suite 190 

Stonecrest, Georgia 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER:    Mayor Jason Lary 
 

II. ROLL CALL:   Council Member Rob Turner was absent. 
 

III. INVOCATION:  Invocation was led by Mayor Lary. A moment of silence was held in memory of 
Elyse Purefoy of Arabia Mountain High School. 

 
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

 
V. Awards and Honors 

 
VI. APPROVAL OF THE COUNCIL AGENDA: 

 
Motion 1- was made by Council Member George Turner to approve the agenda with the changes as 
follows:  

• Add 2. East Metro CID Appointment XII. New Business  

A second was provided by Council member Diane Adoma. 

Motion passed unanimously.   
 
 

VII. MINUTES: 

Motion 2- was made by Council Member George Turner to approve the Council meeting Minutes from 
May 28, 2019 and Council Member Jimmy Clanton provided the second.   



Motion passed unanimously 

 
VIII. PRESENTATIONS: 

a. DeKalb Mass Transit – Grady Smith, VHB and Michael Hightower, The Collaborative 
Grady Smith explained what the DeKalb County Transit Master Plans and where they are in the 
process. 
This plan will be finalized by late June or early July. There was much discussion amongst Council. 

b. Plez Joyner, Deputy City Manager DeKalb County Board of Commissioners Committee of the 
Whole will be meeting at Stonecrest City Hall on June 18 at 5:30pm 

 
IX. PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

 
• Renee Cail – Complaint about 3610 Evans Mill Rd- Cell Tower 
• Geraldine Champion- Wants to know if the City of Stonecrest or Jacobs does background checks 

on employees. 
• Amanda Mann- Complaint about 7301 S. Goddard Rd. operating as an event center 
• Gregory Pierce- Would like to know what the City’s plan is about the closed businesses and 

would like the crime statistics to be published and available to public 
• Chianti Brown- Spoke in opposition to the approval of SLUP-19-002- 5714 Southcrest Lane 

Stonecrest Ga 30038 
• Gentle Culpepper- Doesn’t want anymore gas stations or cellphone towers. Would like to know 

what the overlay plans are 
• Dawn Pettygar- Spoke in opposition to the approval of SLUP-19-002- 5714 Southcrest Lane 

Stonecrest Ga 30038 
• Ralph Cooper- Absent 
• Neil Allen- Spoke in opposition to the approval of SLUP-19-002- 5714 Southcrest Lane 

Stonecrest Ga 30038 
• Lisa Evans- Spoke in opposition to the approval of SLUP-19-002- 5714 Southcrest Lane 

Stonecrest Ga 30038 
• Denies Powell- Spoke in opposition to the approval of SLUP-19-002- 5714 Southcrest Lane 

Stonecrest Ga 30038 
• Angela Catley- Spoke in opposition to the approval of SLUP-19-002- 5714 Southcrest Lane 

Stonecrest Ga 30038 
• Eugent Powell- Absent 
• Lyndal Benjamin- Spoke in opposition to the approval of SLUP-19-002- 5714 Southcrest Lane 

Stonecrest Ga 30038 



• Grover Benjamin- Spoke in opposition to the approval of SLUP-19-002- 5714 Southcrest Lane 
Stonecrest Ga 30038 

• Minister Stone- Spoke in opposition to the approval of SLUP-19-002- 5714 Southcrest Lane 
Stonecrest Ga 30038 

• Marcia Stone- Spoke in opposition to the approval of SLUP-19-002- 5714 Southcrest Lane 
Stonecrest Ga 30038 

• John Carter- Spoke in opposition to the approval of SLUP-19-002- 5714 Southcrest Lane 
Stonecrest Ga 30038 

• Gina Mangham- Commented about the DeKalb transit Master Plan 
• Mary Edmond- Would like to know the policy and procedures 

 
X. APPOINTMENTS: ** Moved From Agenda Item X11. New Business 2. ** 

a. East Metro CID Steering Committee 

Appointment of Council Member Jazzmin Cobble to the East Metro CID Steering Committee. 

Motion 3 – was made by Mayor Jason Lary to appoint Council Member Jazzmin Cobble to the East 
Metro CID Steering Committee and a second was provided by Council Member Diane Adoma 

  

XI. OLD BUSINESS: 
a. City Hall Buildout 

After much discussion, the Mayor asked the Council for a vote. 

Motion 4- was made by Mayor Jason Lary to authorize staff to negotiate a lease with Robert Scott, 
Real Estate Agent and a second was provided by Council Member Jimmy Clanton. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

b. Second Reading- Updating Telecommunications Regulations TMOD – 19-0004 

Motion 5- was made by Mayor Lary to approve the 2nd Reading of TMOD- 19-0004 and a second was 
provided by Council Member Jimmy Clanton. 

Council member George Turner confirmed with the City Attorney that this could be amended in 
the future if needed. 

Council Member Adoma had many concerns in getting the ordinance right the first time and asked to 
have her opinion put on record and she handed her opinion to the City Clerk. The City Attorney said 
that the written opinion could be incorporated in the minutes if the Chair/Mayor agreed. The Mayor 



asked that they not be read but put in the minutes as written by Council Member Adoma. The opinion 
is below and is a true and exact copy of the original. 

 

Motion passed. 4-1 with Council member Adoma opposing.  

3. Second Reading- Use Table Updates to Modify Personal and Childcare Homes TMOD – 19-
0002(B)  

 
Motion 6- was made by Council Member George Turner to approve the 2nd Reading of TMOD – 19-
0002(B) and was seconded by Council member Jazzmin Cobble. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 



XII. NEW BUSINESS: 
 

1. Establishment of Stonecrest District 4 Advisory Committee and Authorization 

Council Member George Turner announced his creation of a new committee for District 4. 

XIII. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

 
XIV. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  

Motion 7- was made by Council Member Jimmy Clanton to go into Executive Session for Personnel 
and a second was provided by Council Member George Turner. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 

WHEN AND EXECUTIVE SESSION IS REQUIRED, ONE WILL BE CALLED FOR THE FOLLOWING 
ISSUES: 1) PERSONNEL, 2) LITIGATION, 3) REAL ESTATE 

Motion 8- was made by Council Member George Turner to go back into the Council Meeting Regular 
Session and a second was provided by Council Member Rob Turner. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 

 

Motion 9- was made by Council Member George Turner to Amend the agenda and add Contract 
Notification under New Business. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

“XII. New Business- 2. Contract Notification” 
 
Motion 10– was made by Mayor Lary to notify per the Contract for Economic Development and was 
seconded by Council Member Jimmy Clanton. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
  

 
XV. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS:   

No comments 
 



 
XVI. CITY ATTORNEY COMMENTS:    

No comments 
 

XVII. MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
Council Member Diane Adoma- Commended her granddaughters for coming to the meeting tonight. 
Also noted that she voted no on the Personal Care Home SLUP-19-002 
 
Council Member George Turner- Hosting a Water Trail Canoe trip on June 29 and please see him to 
sign up. 
 
Council Member Jimmy Clanton- Thanked everyone for coming. 
 
 

XVIII. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Motion 11- was made by Council Member Jazzmin Cobble to adjourn the Council meeting at 10:23pm 
and a second was provided by Council Member Jimmy Clanton. 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
Read and adopted in the regular meeting of the City Council held on this _____ day of 
_______________, 2019. 
    __________________________ 
    Mayor Jason Lary 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Megan P. Reid, City Clerk 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
 

SUBJECT: Comprehensive Plan Public Hearing and Resolution 
 

( ) ORDINANCE ( ) POLICY ( ) STATUS REPORT 

( ) DISCUSSION ONLY ( ) RESOLUTION ( x ) OTHER 

Council Meeting: 7/08/2019 
 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Mary Darby 
 

PURPOSE: 
 

HISTORY: 
 

FACTS AND ISSUES: 
The City of Stonecrest submitted the Comprehensive Plan to Department of 
Community Affairs and received approval on June 5, 2019.  
 

OPTIONS: Comprehensive Plan Link 
https://documentcloud.adobe.com/link/track?uri=urn:aaid:scds:US:c56f7fe5-ac82-4115-
842a-b6875583d0a9 

https://documentcloud.adobe.com/link/track?uri=urn:aaid:scds:US:c56f7fe5-ac82-4115-842a-b6875583d0a9
https://documentcloud.adobe.com/link/track?uri=urn:aaid:scds:US:c56f7fe5-ac82-4115-842a-b6875583d0a9


             



 



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
SUBJECT: Comprehensive Plan Public Hearing and Resolution 

 
( ) ORDINANCE ( ) POLICY ( ) STATUS REPORT 

( ) DISCUSSION ONLY ( ) RESOLUTION ( x ) OTHER 

Council Meeting: 7/08/2019 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Mary Darby 

PURPOSE: 
 
 

HISTORY: 
 

FACTS AND ISSUES: 
The City of Stonecrest submitted a request to the Senate to increase the Hotel/Motel 
Tax from 5% to 8%. The House Bill was approved and now requires an ordinance to  go 
into effect. 
 
This is a Sample Ordinance from Department of Community Affairs and a final copy 
will be ready for 7/8/2019. 

OPTIONS:  



 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 



 

 



 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
SUBJECT: Zoning Ordinance Professional Services 

 
( ) ORDINANCE ( ) POLICY ( ) STATUS REPORT 

( ) DISCUSSION ONLY ( ) RESOLUTION ( x ) OTHER 

Council Meeting: 7/08/2019 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Mayor Lary 

PURPOSE: 
 
 

HISTORY: 
 

FACTS AND ISSUES: 
This is an agreement that conforms to our Comprehensive Plan 2038. 

OPTIONS:  
 

 

 

 



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEEMENT made this ____ day of ___________2019 between the City of Stonecrest, hereinafter referred to as 
"City" and The Collaborative Firm, LLC, a planning, zoning and economic development firm of Fulton County, Georgia 
hereinafter referred to as "Contractor." 

WITNESSETH: 

That on the terms and conditions hereafter set forth, the City does hereby employ the Contractor for the City of Stonecrest 
Zoning Ordinance Update. 

1. 

The City desires to update the current Zoning Ordinance and Contractor desires to provide professional planning services 
regarding the update of the Zoning Ordinance in order to best support the Future Land Use portion of the City of 
Stonecrest's Comprehensive Plan. 

2. 

The Contractor in coordination and consultation with the City agrees to manage and perform services for the update of the 
current Zoning Ordinance during the term of this agreement as described below. 

1. Project Orientation 

a. The Contractor shall meet with the Governing Body and City Staff for an orientation meeting in order to provide 
understanding of project goals, schedule, issues, policies, and other challenges. 

b. The Contractor shall be responsible for reviewing and understanding the City's past studies, policies, and all 
other relevant applicable local, state and federal laws. 

2. Public Participation 

a. The Contractor will engage the public throughout the Zoning Ordinance process. 

b. The Contractor will develop a Public Involvement Plan for the Zoning Ordinance Update. 

c. The Contractor will identify and facilitate a Stakeholder Committee with the support of the City's Staff. 

d. The Contractor will provide up-to-date materials for the City’s Staff to maintain on the City website devoted 
solely to the Zoning Ordinance Update. 

3. Zoning Code Evaluation 

a. The Contractor shall complete a thorough analysis and evaluation of the City's current Zoning Code and map. 

 

4. Discussion - Draft Zoning Code 



The Contractor will draft a Zoning Code which will shall be easy to read, follow and understand, updateable, clear 
and easy to follow with graphic expressions; The Draft Zoning Code will be developed and visually created in 
Microsoft© Word. 

5. Discussion - Draft Citywide Zoning Map 

a. The Contractor will develop and draft a map for review by City Staff, Mayor and Council, as well as the General 
Public. 

6. Public Hearing on Zoning Code and Citywide Map 

a. The Contractor will conduct a Public Hearing to present and discuss the Draft Zoning Code and Citywide Map to 
stakeholders. 

7. Attend Public Hearings, Revise Zoning Code and Citywide Map 

a. The Contractor will attend Public Hearings, Revise Zoning Code and Citywide Map based on stakeholder input. 

8. Zoning Code Implementation 

a. The Contractor will develop strategy and conduct training as necessary for City Staff, Mayor and Council. 

b. The Contractor will deliver one (1) final copy of the adopted City Zoning Code and map in the following formats: 
1) hard copy, 2) modifiable electronic version, and 3) a web-friendly version. 

3. 

Time Schedule 

This agreement shall commence on ______ until _________. 

4. 

Fee 

For such services listed in Item 3, the City agrees to pay the Contractor $110,000.00. The budget for these services will be 
split between the 2019 – 2020 budget year and the 2020 - 2021 budget year. The budget amount for 2019-2020 will be 
$55,000.00 and the budget amount for 2020-2021 will be $55,000.00. The Contractor shall invoice the City monthly for 
services for work completed. 

 

 

5. 

Miscellaneous 



Section 1. It is mutually agreed by The Contractor that every service to be performed hereunder shall be subject to all 
conditions not prohibited by law which are printed herein and that these conditions are printed herein and that these 
conditions are hereby agreed to by the Contractor. 

Section 2. The City and Contractor reserve the right to terminate this Agreement by issuing thirty (30) days written notice 
to the other party. 

Section 3. Employees, aides, staff, helpers, or any person who receives any form of consideration for services or who 
performs any services towards the execution of this Agreement are deemed to be the sole responsibility of the Contractor 
for the purposes of all Workers’ Compensation and insurance claims. The City reserves the right to superintend the 
performance of this Agreement only to the extent that the desired results are obtained. No recommendation or 
requirement in this Agreement and list of specifications should be deemed to obligate the City under the Workers’ 
Compensation Act to Contractor's employees, aides, staff, helpers or any person who receives any form of consideration 
for services or who performs any services towards the execution of this Agreement on behalf of Contractors. 

Section 4. This Agreement and the exhibits attached hereto constitute the entire Agreement and understanding among the 
parties hereto and supersede and revoke any prior agreement or understanding relating to the subject matter of this 
Agreement. No change, amendment, termination, or attempted waiver of any of the provisions hereof shall be binding 
upon the other parties unless reduced to writing and signed by all parties hereto. 

Section 5. Nothing contained in the Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of action in favor of a 
third party against the City. 

Section 6. Contractor agrees to hold harmless the City, its officers, boards, and employees, from and against any liability 
for damages and for any liability or claims resulting from property damage or bodily injures (including accidental death) 
which arise out of Contractor's operation and provision of services. 

Section 7. This Agreement may not be assigned by either party hereto. This Agreement and the rights of the parties 
hereunder shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and, if 
applicable, assigns. 

Section 8. Any notices or communications required or permitted hereunder shall be sufficiently given if sent by Registered 
or Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested, postage pre-paid, addressed as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
AS TO CONTRACTOR: 
 
The Collaborative Firm, LLC 
1514 East Cleveland Avenue, Suite 82 



East Point, GA 30344 
Attn: Michael Hightower 
 

AS TO CLIENT: 

City of Stonecrest 
3120 Stonecrest Blvd. 
Stonecrest, GA 30281 
Attn: Julian Jackson   

 

or such address as shall be furnished by such notice to the other parties. 

Section 10. The captions used in this Agreement are inserted for convenience only and shall not constitute a part hereof. 

Section 11. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia. 

Section 12. If applicable, title to any supplies, materials, equipment, or other personal property shall remain in the 
Contractor until fully paid for by the City. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have each executed and delivered this agreement as of the day and year 
first above written. 

CITY OF STONECREST 

____________________________________ 

 

 

THE COLLABORATIVE FIRM, LLC 

____________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 


